
Notice of Meeting

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 24 January 2024 - 7:00 pm
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barking

Members: Cllr Glenda Paddle (Chair); Cllr Dorothy Akwaboah (Deputy Chair); Cllr Andrew 
Achilleos, Cllr Donna Lumsden, Cllr Fatuma Nalule, Cllr Ingrid Robinson, Cllr Paul 
Robinson, Cllr Muazzam Sandhu, Cllr Phil Waker and Cllr Mukhtar Yusuf

Co-Opted Members (for education matters only): Glenda Spencer, Sarfraz Akram, Sajjad 
Ali and Richard Hopkins

Date of publication: 12th January 2024 Fiona Taylor
Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Leanna McPherson
Tel. 020 8227 2852

E-mail: leanna.mcpherson@lbbd.gov.uk

Please note that this meeting will be webcast via the Council’s website.  Members of the 
public wishing to attend the meeting in person can sit in the public gallery on the second 
floor of the Town Hall, which is not covered by the webcast cameras.   To view the 
webcast online, click here and select the relevant meeting (the weblink will be available at 
least 24-hours before the meeting).

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declaration of Members' Interests  

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare any 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting.

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 5th 
December 2023 (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Budget Strategy 2024/25 to 2026/27 (Pages 7 - 25) 

5. Work Programme (Pages 27 - 28) 

https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/Internet/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=786&Year=0


6. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent  

7. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to exclude 
the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to the nature of 
the business to be transacted.  

Private Business

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee, except where business is confidential or certain other 
sensitive information is to be discussed. The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the relevant 
paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended). 
There are no such items at the time of preparing this agenda.

8. Any confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent  



Our Vision for Barking and Dagenham

ONE BOROUGH; ONE COMMUNITY;
NO-ONE LEFT BEHIND

Our Priorities

Participation and Engagement

 To collaboratively build the foundations, platforms and networks that 
enable greater participation by:
o Building capacity in and with the social sector to improve cross-

sector collaboration
o Developing opportunities to meaningfully participate across the 

Borough to improve individual agency and social networks
o Facilitating democratic participation to create a more engaged, 

trusted and responsive democracy
 To design relational practices into the Council’s activity and to focus that 

activity on the root causes of poverty and deprivation by:
o Embedding our participatory principles across the Council’s activity
o Focusing our participatory activity on some of the root causes of 

poverty

Prevention, Independence and Resilience

 Working together with partners to deliver improved outcomes for 
children, families and adults

 Providing safe, innovative, strength-based and sustainable practice in all 
preventative and statutory services

 Every child gets the best start in life 
 All children can attend and achieve in inclusive, good quality local 

schools
 More young people are supported to achieve success in adulthood 

through higher, further education and access to employment
 More children and young people in care find permanent, safe and stable 

homes
 All care leavers can access a good, enhanced local offer that meets their 

health, education, housing and employment needs
 Young people and vulnerable adults are safeguarded in the context of 

their families, peers, schools and communities

Page 1

Agenda Annex



 Our children, young people, and their communities’ benefit from a whole 
systems approach to tackling the impact of knife crime

 Zero tolerance to domestic abuse drives local action that tackles 
underlying causes, challenges perpetrators and empowers survivors

 All residents with a disability can access from birth, transition to, and in 
adulthood support that is seamless, personalised and enables them to 
thrive and contribute to their communities. Families with children who 
have Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND) can access a 
good local offer in their communities that enables them independence 
and to live their lives to the full

 Children, young people and adults can better access social, emotional 
and mental wellbeing support - including loneliness reduction - in their 
communities

 All vulnerable adults are supported to access good quality, sustainable 
care that enables safety, independence, choice and control

 All vulnerable older people can access timely, purposeful integrated care 
in their communities that helps keep them safe and independent for 
longer, and in their own homes

 Effective use of public health interventions to reduce health inequalities

Inclusive Growth

 Homes: For local people and other working Londoners
 Jobs: A thriving and inclusive local economy
 Places: Aspirational and resilient places
 Environment: Becoming the green capital of the capital

Well Run Organisation

 Delivers value for money for the taxpayer
 Employs capable and values-driven staff, demonstrating excellent people 

management
 Enables democratic participation, works relationally and is transparent
 Puts the customer at the heart of what it does
 Is equipped and has the capability to deliver its vision

Page 2



MINUTES OF
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 5 December 2023
(6:15  - 8:27 pm) 

Present: Cllr Glenda Paddle (Chair), Cllr Dorothy Akwaboah (Deputy Chair), Cllr 
Andrew Achilleos, Cllr Fatuma Nalule, Cllr Ingrid Robinson, Cllr Paul Robinson, 
Cllr Muazzam Sandhu and Cllr Mukhtar Yusuf; Sajjad Ali

Apologies: Cllr Phil Waker

28. Declaration of Members' Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

29. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
October 2023

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2023 were confirmed as correct.

30. Metropolitan Police Update

Chief Superintendent Stuart Bell BCU Commander, East Area BCU and 
Superintendent David Rhodes, Barking and Dagenham Neighborhood Lead, 
provided an updated report on the work of the Metropolitan Police within the 
Borough.

The Metropolitan Police was undergoing a reform with policing in local 
communities to gain more trust from the public, reduce crime rates and increase 
high standards across the board. As part of the reform, ten commitments were 
established to tackle Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG). The 
commitments included:

1. Working to eliminate police perpetrated domestic abuse and sexual 
offences and we will improve the effectiveness of our response to these 
crimes.

2. Working to improve how we listen to those impacted by VAWG. We will 
take specific action to understand how we can improve engagement with 
minoritized women and girls.

3. Working to demonstrably prioritize VAWG.
4. Working to tackle sexism and misogyny in the Met.
5. Working to look outside the Met for ways to improve our response to 

VAWG.
6. Working to do much more to identify and tackle perpetrators of VAWG.
7. Working to make better use of police powers to protect women and girls 

from perpetrators, such as civil orders and protection orders.
8. Working to take action to improve support and care for VAWG victim 

survivors through the criminal justice process to ensure a consistent and 
compassionate service everywhere in London.

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 3



9. Working to identify high risk and high harm locations for VAWG, and 
target resources to those places to improve the safety of women and 
girls in London’s public spaces.

10.Working to focus on preventing VAWG through our Strongest Ever 
Neighborhoods programme.

A new structure was introduced to the local Base Command Unit (BCU) with 
vacancies created. The vacancies were for ten Police Community Support Officers 
(PCSO), 3 Sergeants and 1 Inspector. Between 2024/26, it was hoped that there 
would be up to 20 new PCSO’s. The current Sergeants were each spread across 
three wards, the introduction of three new Sergeants would reduce the number of 
wards down to two wards per Sergeant.  

A new app was introduced to frontline responders which would allow victims to 
give instant feedback relating to the officers that had delt with the victim. The 
feedback would be collated to see which officers delivered good services and 
address those giving poor services. 

The Committee stated that it had seen significant improvement on the policing 
done within the Borough within the past six months: however, communication 
between the Police and Councillors needed improvement. It was suggested for the 
Safer Neighborhood Team (SNT) to give bi-monthly updates to Councillors.

A question was raised regarding what was being done regarding anti-social 
behavior on public transport. It was common for police to be called a period of time 
after an incident had taken place on public transport. This reduced the chance of 
police apprehending the perpetrator as either the perpetrator would be gone when 
police arrived, or it would be hard tracking down the specific transportation where 
the incident took place. There were additional Safter Transport Teams that worked 
on transport networks with high crime rate. Most Transport for London buses also 
had advanced CCTV cameras installed. 

In response to a question regarding the movement of SNT officers around different 
wards, Superintendent David Rhodes assured committee members that officers 
would only have one joint day of action a month in which they would be abstracted 
from their wards and placed in another ward based on the crime rates.

Reported Domestic Violence (DV) had been on the rise; however, it did remain 
significantly under reported. Around 80% of DV reports, the victim was a woman. 
Often the perpetrator was either the partner of the victim or family members. There 
was a significant number of women who would refuse to prosecute due to 
pressure and the way proceedings took place. There were independent DV 
advisers that work with the police to support the victims in taking the case forward. 
The police had identified 100 men (VAWG 100) across London that had shown 
repeated bad behavior towards women and girls. Improvements were made on 
data sharing across all BCU’s to build an index of perpetrators and the risks they 
imposed. 

There was a suggestion that the Council funding for nine extra police officers and 
one Sergeant within the borough was under consideration due to the Council’s 
significant financial pressures. The Council was in ongoing discussions with the 
Metropolitan police on what the future of the service would look like, however no 

Page 4



formal decision had been made. 

The abstractions of officers across London were undertaken as fair as possible. 
The amount of protests that had occurred in Central London were perpetual and 
required a significate amount of policing. The last eight weekends, there was 
around 1000 – 1500 officers deployed on aid in which officers were sent off from 
their BCU to police Central London Protests. This had meant that SNT officers 
were abstracted from their wards to fill in for the emergency response role. If the 
number of officer abstractions was based on the crime rate of a London Borough, 
LBBD would have more abstractions compared to other London Boroughs. On 
average, an officer would work 20 days a month with 2.7 days of abstractions per 
officer. 

Reported crime was more accurate for certain crime types. Crime types such as 
burglary, robbery and serious assault had more accurate reporting as there were 
more incentives such as claiming through insurance. Other crimes such as Anti-
Social Behavior were under reported as there were no incentives. Underreporting 
crime had a lot to with the lack of trust the public had with the police. Time and 
consistency were needed to build trust and confidence between the public and 
Police. The Cabinet Member for Enforcement & Community Safety assured the 
committee that the police worked jointly with the enforcement team to build trust 
with residents. There had been significant outcomes and success on joint 
operations between the Council enforcement team and the Police. Staff at 
community hubs were also trained to refer information onto Police and Council 
officials. 

The Committee asked whether the Metropolitan Police had become too big and 
widespread to cope with looking after local areas. In response to the question, 
Chief Superintendent Stuart Bell explained the response time of the Metropolitan 
Police was faster compared to other police forces. London was a capital city that 
had a high demand and more complex challenges. There would still be the same 
challenges if the Police force became more localized. Localising police forces 
would mean that there would need to be a significant increase in the number of 
officers to maintain the same level of service. 

Out of the 19 wards within the borough, 18 wards had two PCSO’s. There was one 
ward with one current PCSO and a vacant position which the Police were actively 
trying to fill. Many of the new recruits were on a degree course where they would 
be abstracted at times to attend University. 

A recent published reported highlighted the Metropolitan’s failings in its child 
protection services, such as sexual abuse, links to organised gangs and failing to 
search for missing children. A question was put to the Metropolitan Police on what 
would be done to improve child protection services. The Committee was informed 
that there would be a full inspection scheduled for March 2024. The Police 
conducted huge investigations to take out county line gangs. Recently, there was 
several county lines taken out within the local area. The Police did not grade a lot 
of missing children as high risk as most children usually retuned; however, they 
had acknowledged that more work needed to be undertaken to on what happened 
to those children while they were missing.  

A question was asked by the Committee regarding any milestone dates in which 

Page 5



the Metropolitan Police were expected to achieve their VAWG commitments. The 
committee was informed that many of the commitments would be hard to measure; 
however, there would be a quarterly governance meeting held with Senior Officers 
and partners to review the progress of the ten commitments. A meeting was held 
with a performance team to find measurable outcomes.

With regards to protecting VAWG, engagement stalls gave out alarms to women 
as part of the Metropolitan Police Walk and Talks. Barking and Dagenham were 
also exploring the Safe Havens Scheme which encourages residents needing help 
to attend public premises that have the Safe Havens sign displayed. 

A question was asked on whether the Metropolitan Police would take a more 
active role in youth groups such as the Youth AIG and local cadet meetings. 
Officers had tried to attend as many schools as possible. Superintendent David 
Rhodes advised the Youth Forum to get in touch with the police and tell them the 
meetings, dates and times they would want officers to attend. 

(Standing Order 7.1 (Chapter 3, Part 2 of the Council Constitution) was suspended 
at this juncture to enable the meeting to continue beyond the two-hour threshold).

31. Work Programme

The Committee noted the work programme and requested that the Metropolitan 
Police return in six months to update the Committee on their progress.

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee

24th January 2024

Title: Budget Strategy 2024/25 to 2026/27

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance, Growth & Core Services

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author: Nish Popat – Deputy Section 151 
Officer

Contact Details:
Tel: TBA 

Accountable Strategic Director: Jo Moore, Interim Strategic Director, Resources (S151 
Officer)
Summary

On 18th July 2023, the Cabinet approved a refreshed Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) for 2023/24 to 2027/28 for the Council’s General Fund and this Budget Strategy 
report was presented to Cabinet on 19th December 2023. The report was prepared on the 
backdrop of financial uncertainty arising from a period of increasing inflation following 
conflict in Ukraine and the COVID-19 pandemic. The Council continues to experience 
cost pressures which is resulting in overspends against budget. 

This report re-considers that strategy and refreshes the financial plan in light of a detailed 
review of the Council’s current financial risks and challenges that it faces.  There will 
always be an element of uncertainty inherent in financial forecasting and this report is 
based on predictions of funding ahead of the Local Government Draft Settlement which is 
not likely to be issued until just before Christmas.

However, following the Autumn Statement by Government in November there is an 
expectation of a one-year funding settlement for 2024/25 particularly with an expected 
election next financial year. Whilst local authorities have previously been given indicative 
funding forecasts at a sector level, at this stage there is uncertainty surrounding the 
allocation of funding from Government on an individual borough basis. The financial plan 
will be updated with the Final Settlement figures for the final Budget Framework report 
planned for Cabinet in February 2024.

It is in this context that the report updates Cabinet on changes to the Council’s medium 
term financial position and includes the latest projected budget gap of £23.335m. This 
gap is after the identification of £10.618m of savings. The net savings, after growth is 
£8.327m. The savings proposals are included within this report and approval is sought to 
begin consultation on those proposals.

Policy statement issued by Central Government in early December confirms that the 
Government’s intended approach is to increase Council Tax in line with 2023/24. 

Given the financial challenges that the Council is facing, the assumption is that the 
permitted increase will be agreed by Members and applied.

Page 7

AGENDA ITEM 4



The final budget report to be presented to Cabinet and Assembly in February 2024 will 
also include the Council’s 5-year capital programme which will be accompanied by a 
proposed Capital Strategy and the revenue impacts on the General Fund proposals.

The Council’s DSG and HRA budgets will also be presented together with the revised 
Treasury Management Strategy for 2024/25 and beyond.
Recommendation(s)

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

(i) Note the MTFS Budget Gap for 2024/25 and for the next two financial year

(ii) Note new proposed savings and growth proposals put forward for 2024/25 as 
set out in Appendix 1 and discuss any issues that need further exploration.

Reason(s)

The setting of a robust and balanced Medium Term Financial Strategy will enable the 
Council to provide and deliver services within its overall corporate and financial planning 
framework. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy underpins the delivery of the Council’s 
vision of: One borough; one community and no one left behind and delivery of the 
priorities within available resources.

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1. This report presents the latest financial budget gap for 2024/25 and sets the context 
for the future financial position for the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham. 
This budget strategy aims to update Cabinet on the work done to arrive at the latest 
financial position and seeks the Cabinet’s approval to begin the statutory and 
necessary consultation process.

1.2. As detailed in section 2 of this report, the Council is facing a significant shortfall in its 
budget to reach a balanced budget for 2024/25 which has predominantly arisen 
because of significant cost pressures arising from high inflation, increases in interest 
rates, increases in demand and/or change in the needs of existing service users. 

1.3. This has led to the 2023/24 base budgets being under considerable pressure which 
is borne out in the Period 7 budget monitoring report presented as a separate report 
on the same agenda and highlights a forecast £11.6m overspend in 2023/24, 
predominantly in the People and Resilience Directorate.  

1.4. These base budget pressures are projected to continue in future years. This report 
reflects those challenges together with future projections of new pressures forecast 
next year in 2024/25. 

1.5. This Budget Strategy report will underpin the Council’s Budget Framework and 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy planned for February 2024 Cabinet and Assembly. 
The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a statement on the Council’s 
approach to the management of its financial resources to meet its Corporate 
Priorities.

1.6. The Council is currently only planning on a MTFS 3-year horizon (2024/25 to 
2026/27) due to significant level of uncertainty post 2024/25 and the wider context 

Page 8



within which it is operating. It is expected that the UK will see a General Election in 
2024/25 and for this reason estimating future funding streams is difficult (with or 
without a change in government) and further macro-economic scenarios are likely to 
arise next financial year which will require a further refresh to the MTFS with the 
ambition to propose a new 5-year plan.

1.7. Looking at the wider context, Barking and Dagenham is likely to be facing further 
inflationary pressures, expectations of rising demand for services and/or changes in 
complexity of need, particularly for social and housing provision. The financial 
sustainability of the whole of Local Government is under stress and this has been 
seen by a number of Local Authorities issuing a Section 114 notice, effectively 
signifying their inability to deliver a balanced budget.  However, what is different now 
is that the reason for these notices is purely that increases in funding have not kept 
pace with expenditure. 

1.8. The Government published their Autumn Statement on 22 November 2023. This set 
out the spending proposals for government, including the Department for Levelling 
Up, Homes and Communities (DLUHC), for the next 5 years with a number of policy 
and funding announcements related to local government. However, DLUHC are 
anticipated to provide a one-year funding settlement for 2024/25 with only indications 
on the direction of travel for later years.

1.9. DLUHC are in the process of allocating funding to individual local authorities and 
these allocations will be published in late December 2023. The draft Local 
Government Finance Settlement will provide the basis on which the detailed budget 
for 2024/25 is prepared for approval by Assembly in February 2024. 

1.10. Previous budget reports have commented on the significant reduction in funding from 
Central Government, with the key measure of Core Spending Power, continuing to 
show reduced level of funding since 2010. The 2023/24 financial year saw an 
average increase of 9.2% in core spending power (CSP) – the government’s 
measure of overall core funding – for London boroughs from £8.01bn to £8.75bn. 
However, despite the overall increase, CSP for London Boroughs will remain 18% 
below 2010 levels in real terms.

1.11. Rising interest rates impacts on the Council’s borrowing costs and in particular on the 
ambitions of the Council’s Investment and Acquisition (IAS) Strategy.

1.12. The IAS Strategy was established to be self-financing and had a target ambition of 
delivering a 5% revenue return to the Council both of which are now at real risk.  An 
inherent aspect of the IAS, and regeneration more generally, is the length of time it 
takes from a decision being taken by Cabinet to proceed with a regeneration scheme 
and the actual delivery of that scheme.

1.13. This long duration, often spanning many financial years, means that the Council is 
exposed to construction cost risk until such time as development contracts are 
entered into but also interest rate risk.  Unfortunately, global events in recent years 
have meant that both these risks have crystallised with significant increases in both 
construction costs and interest rates.

1.14. These changes have had significant impacts on IAS scheme viabilities with many 
schemes not delivering anywhere near the returns that were originally forecast and 

Page 9



this was highlighted in the two reports for Beam Park and Gascoigne 3b which were 
presented to Cabinet in September 2023.

1.15. They have also made the approval of new schemes extremely difficult, and the 
Council has spent just over £13m on scheme initial phase costs and is struggling to 
find viable solutions to be able to progress those schemes.

1.16. In order to carry out regeneration the Council also makes open market purchases by 
way of land assembly for those schemes and for this reason has acquired a 
significant IAS Commercial Portfolio. As these are assets which are being held for 
regeneration purposes, and may be disposed of, they have been funded by short-
term borrowing for which there has been a sharp increase in costs.

1.17. The Council’s subsidiaries financial positions are also integrated into the Council 
overall financial position with the Council’s base budget including a permanent 
income budget of just under £13m for dividend income receivable from its 
subsidiaries.  Difficulties with new scheme viabilities has led to a reduction on 
regeneration activity which in turn impacts on fees earned by the Council’s 
regeneration subsidiary and their ability to declare dividend income.

1.18. The Council has also made working capital and other loans to its subsidiaries and 
there are financial risks associated with both the dividend income and the servicing of 
the subsidiary debt.  Relevant officers and Members are working closely with the 
Chief Executive and Boards of those subsidiaries to ensure that there is no financial 
impact on the Council’s HRA or General Fund over the MTFS period.  This report 
makes certain assumptions in this respect which may need to be revisited once that 
work has completed.

1.19. The MTFS also considers the appropriate level of reserves that the Council holds to 
mitigate current and longer-term risks.  The Council’s S151 Officer will be required to 
make a statement (known as the Section 25 statement) that the budget proposals are 
robust and that the proposed levels of reserves (after setting the budget) are 
adequate taking into account the financial risks that the Council is facing.

1.20. The Council continues to try to find ways to tackle all of these challenges to enable a 
balanced budget to be set and that poor performance is improved so that target 
income and financial returns are achieved. 

1.21. Medium term financial planning must make assumptions about the future demand 
profile and cost pressures on expenditure and on factors that affect income sources 
and there is always the inherent risk that these assumptions may prove to be 
incorrect. The MTFS represents a summary of these assumptions and their impact 
on the funding of the council. 

2. Council Priorities and Strategic Framework

2.1. The MTFS is underpinned by the Council’s Corporate Plan 2023-26 which sets out 
the vision of the Council to make Barking and Dagenham a place people are proud of 
and where they want to live, work, study and stay, whilst ensuring that no-one is left 
behind. 

Page 10



2.2. The Corporate Plan 2023-26 sets out the seven strategic priorities by which this 
vision will be achieved:

 Residents are supported during the current Cost-of-Living crisis; 
 Residents are safe, protected and supported at their most vulnerable; 
 Residents live healthier, happier, independent lives for longer; 
 Residents prosper from good education, skills development and secure 

employment; 
 Residents benefit from inclusive growth and regeneration; 
 Residents live in and play their part in creating safer, cleaner and 

greener neighbourhoods; 
 Residents live in good housing and avoid becoming homeless; 

 
2.3. To support our priorities a set of principles have been developed to be applied to our 

work across the whole Council. These principles, together with our values and 
culture, will drive service delivery, performance, and innovation:

 Work in partnership; 
 Engage and facilitate co-production; 
 Be evidence-led and data driven; 
 Focus on prevention and early intervention; 
 Provide value-for-money; 
 Be strengths-based ;
 Adopt a "health in all policies” approach; 
 Strengthen risk management and compliance. 

3. Revised Budget Gap 2024/25 and Budget Assumptions

3.1. The updated MTFS identifies a potential 2024/25 budget deficit of £23.335m, after 
allowing for savings proposals totalling £10.618m. The net savings, after growth is 
£8.327m. The cumulative budget deficit increases to £37.053m by 2026/27 as 
detailed in Table 3 below. The current proposed savings for 2024/25 are outlined in 
Appendix A although officers and members are continuing to work together to identify 
further potential areas for budget savings. 

3.2. This is an increase in the funding gap compared to £11.865m reported to Cabinet in 
July 2023 and section 5 of this report details the key drivers for this significant 
worsening position. 

3.3. The Period 7 monitor, also included as part of the same Agenda Pack as this report, 
forecasts a £11.605m overspend after projected net drawdown of reserves of 
£4.888m. In addition, the Council has budgeted to receive £10.3m dividend income 
from Be First, which is now at risk and likely to be funded by further reserve 
drawdown. Without the use of reserves the overspend for 2023/24 would be £26.7m. 
Unfortunately, the forecast overspend is being largely driven by new permanent 
budget pressures and demonstrates that the Council’s budgets are not sustainable. 

3.4. Further work undertaken by officers since July, has identified local historic legacy 
budget risks which have now been corrected and accurately reflected in next year’s 
financial plan. The total additional Growth is £45.778m, which includes all growth 

Page 11



proposals and correction of legacy budget shortfalls and reversal of non-achievable 
savings from 2023/24. 

3.5. The 2023/24 budget was also supported by a drawdown on reserves of nearly £9m in 
order to set a balanced budget.  Using reserves in this way is only a temporary 
measure as reserves are a one-off source of funding.  Without identifying plans to 
address this shortfall in 2023/24, this has added additional pressures onto 2024/25.   
Reserve drawdowns have also supported the Council’s finances last financial year 
with the result that the Council’s earmarked reserves have reduced significantly.

3.6. This includes the rising cost of financing the Council’s relatively large debt balance. 
Over the past 12 months the cost of borrowing has risen due to rising Bank of 
England’s base rate. The weighted average cost of borrowing has risen from 2.07% 
to 2.56% and this is impacting on the interest payable budget, particularly as the 
Council is required to re-finance its debts. 

3.7. From 2024/25 the Council’s policy to support alignment with the London living Wage 
be considered on a contract-by-contract basis, in consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder.

3.8. The Budget plan for next financial year and for the following two years includes a 
range of savings and growth proposals that have been generated during this financial 
year along with those approved in July 2023 Cabinet report. The Council initiated two 
rounds of savings requests from Directorates which were carried out between 
September 2023 and November 2023. A total of £10.618m in savings have been 
found which includes £0.571m from those that were pre-approved in July 2023. 

3.9.  A summary of the 2024/25 savings and growth by Directorate proposed to-date is 
set out in Table 1 below.

Table 1 – Savings and Growth summary by Directorate 

Directorate

Feb-23 
Savings 

£'000

Feb-23 
Growth 
£'000

Star 
Chamber 
Savings 

£'000

Oct-23 
Savings 

£'000

Oct-23 
Growth 
£'000

Total Net 
Savings 

£'000
Community Solutions (150) 42 (184) (1,105) (1,397)
Inclusive Growth 1,233 (567) 666
Law & Governance (352) (90) (442)
My Place (215) 1,000 (1,822) (1,108) (2,145)
People and Resilience 570 (1,307) (2,142) 13 (2,865)
Resources (56) (983) (1,039)
Strategy (150) (566) (389) (1,104)
Grand Total (571) 2,845 (4,230) (5,817) (554) (8,327)

3.10. It is crucial that these savings are delivered as proposed.  Failure to deliver these 
savings will result in an overspend in 2024/25 and an increase in future year budget 
gaps. Officers have reviewed these savings proposals and at this stage all are 
viewed as deliverable.

Page 12



3.11. Further savings proposals are in development and are due to be submitted to 
Finance by 15th December. These will be presented to Executive Team on 21st 
December for formal sign-off. The Strategic Director, Resources (S151 Officer), in 
consultation with the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, Growth & 
Core Services, will agree additional savings proposals to be included for public 
consultation.

3.12. As highlighted above the outcome of the provisional financial settlement for Local 
Government was not known at the time of writing this report and therefore further 
prudent assumptions in relation to funding streams have also been made. Table 2 
below details some of the key assumptions that have been made when setting the 3-
Year MTFS. Despite the uncertainty regarding the level and type of future 
government support, the Council is required to develop plans for its 2024/25 budget.

3.13. These funding assumptions will only be finalised once the final settlement is issued 
by Department of Levelling Up, Homes and Communities (DLUHC) in January 2024. 

Table 2 - Budget Assumptions
Item Assumption 

Level
Total 
Allocation

Explanation

Expenditure
Pay Inflation 5% £8.862m This reflects the net agreed average increase 

across all pay grades in 2023/24 with similar 
pressure on pay expected in future years. 
This allocation will be under review with 
further economic data being released over 
coming months 

Contract Inflation 5% £8.766m Whilst inflation has eased over the past few 
months, a prudent provision is maintained 
due to uncertainties within the macro-
economy. 

Social Care New 
Demand

£13.5m £13.5m This reflects the overspend that the People 
and Resilience directorate currently faces 

Other Demand 
and Demographic 
Changes

£2m A total of £2m has been added as 
contingency to support unknown demand and 
other pressures. 

Interest Costs 3% £14.043m Assumes further increases on weighted 
average cost of debt as current interest are 
much higher than have been in the past. 

Funding
Council Tax 
General Rate 
Increase

2.99% In line with previous increases within the 
referendum cap. 

Council Tax Base 
Increase

55,336 1.7% increase in Council Tax base in-line 
with prudent estimation of new properties 
being delivered in the Borough.

Council Tax Adult 
Social Care 
Precept Increase

2% In line with previous increases within the 
referendum cap.

Business Rates 
Increase

4.6% £25.062m In line with September CPI print

Social Care 
Grants

4.6% £19.716m In line with September CPI print. 

Page 13



3.14. The net General Fund expenditure budget for 2023/24 is £199.002m, a net increase 
from the previous year (2022/23) of £15.942m. Based on savings and growth 
adjustments for the net General Fund expenditure Budget for 2024/25 will rise to 
£234.162m with net funding currently projected to be £210.828m. 

3.15. The 2024/25 forecast budget is summarised in Table 3 below.

Table 3 – Medium Term Financial Strategy

 2024/25 
Forecast 

 2025/26 
Forecast 

 2026/27 
Forecast 

£m £m £m

NET COST OF SERVICES 199.002 234.162 248.423

Financial Planning
Savings - Existing Plans (0.571) (1.198) (0.988)
Pre-Approved Growth 16.196 5.343 5.424
Savings Identified 23-24 (10.047) - -
Growth Identified 23-24 12.887 - -
Inflation and Demographic Change 16.695 10.116 10.068
Capital - - -

Reserves
Contributions to Earmarked Reserves - - -
Contributions from Budget Support Reserve - - -
Contribution from Collection Fund Smoothing Reserve - - -
Use of General Reserve - - -
Net Expenditure after Reserves 234.162 248.423 262.927

Funding
RSG (22.274) (22.274) (22.274)
NDR (25.062) (23.000) (23.000)
NDR Top Up and S31 Grants (38.601) (43.862) (43.862)
(Surplus)/Deficit on Collection Fund 2.821
BRR Pooling (1.000) (1.000) (1.000)
Council tax (80.973) (85.887) (91.042)
S31 Grants and Other Admin Grants (5.104) (14.900) (14.900)
Market Sustainability & Fair Cost of Care Grant (3.215) (3.215) (3.215)
Services Grant (2.333) (2.333) (2.333)
Social Care Support Grant (19.716) (19.268) (19.268)
NHB (1.938) (1.938) (1.938)
Core Funding Total (197.396) (217.677) (222.832)
Company Dividends (10.390)
Investment Income (3.042) (3.042) (3.042)
Investment/Subsidiary Income (13.432) (3.042) (3.042)
Total Funding (210.828) (220.719) (225.874)

Cumulative Budget Gap 23.335 27.703 37.053

Page 14



3.16. A detailed breakdown of the Budget against each Directorate has been provided in 
Appendix B.

3.17. Table 3 presents a cumulative gap position with significant pressures in 2024/25, 
which once covered will ease pressures in future years. Therefore, if the Council can 
find additional permanent savings to bridge the £23.335m gap, the gap for 2025/26, 
based on current assumptions, will reduce to £4.37m. However, it if it cannot find 
these savings then the gap will increase by any shortfall.

3.18. With a forecast £11.065m overspend forecast for 2023/24, a residual budget gap for 
2024/25 of £23.335m and significantly reduced usable General Fund reserves, 
Barking and Dagenham faces serious financial challenges.   The Council must 
reduce its expenditure significantly over the short to medium-term to match its 
funding and income. Difficult decisions are required on service delivery to ensure that 
the Council reaches a sustainable budget position. The Council will also need to 
ensure all inefficiencies are tackled and it also re-considers its capital investment 
needs as the Council continues to take on new debt which results in increased 
Minimum Revenue Provision and interest costs.

3.19. The Investment and Acquisition Strategy will also need to be reviewed and potentially 
an amended strategy brought forward either before, or at the same time, as the 
Council’s MTFS and 2024/25 final budget proposals. 

Financial Measures to support a balanced budget

3.20. In identifying further savings proposals, further financial measures that the Council 
may consider closing this deficit include:

 Reconsider inflationary pressures for next year and ensure the Council better 
negotiates with its suppliers to limit increase for future years; 

 Minimise the need for additional future capital borrowing by realising increased 
capital receipts;

 Reviewing the IAS commercial portfolio to reduce the current forecast pressure 
and working with the wholly owned Council companies to improve returns to the 
Council; 

 Continue scrutiny of the Council’s vacancies and agency costs and ensure these 
are managed at the most appropriate levels;

 Constraining new demand and demographic growth requests within the funding 
envelope assumed within the forward financial plan and/or identifying alternative 
funding streams and improve the prevention strategy; 

 Development of a robust reserves strategy and action plan for the Council that 
mitigates against key financial risks whilst supporting necessary investment; 

 Review the resource forecast as it evolves over the forthcoming months. It will 
be updated in line with new government announcements and actual data on 
business rates and council tax collection;

 Dialogue with central government on the options available to share the Council’s 
financial burden across government, the Council and residents as service 
recipients.

4. Government Funding Changes 

4.1. Key funding streams for 2024/25 and their contribution to the Council’s budget are 
detailed below. 

Page 15



 Council Tax – DLUHC are expected to confirm in the draft Local Government 
Finance Settlement that there will be a council tax referendum threshold of 
2.99% with an adult social care precept of 2% for 2024/25. The MTFS currently 
assumes the total 4.99% increase in council tax 2024/25 and similar increases 
for 2025/26. 

 Growth in the council tax base has been estimated by using data on expected 
new homes being occupied over the MTFS period. A prudent deduction has 
been made to account for properties that may be delayed or where council tax 
will not be payable in full, e.g., recipient of CTS. This assumption will be kept 
under review annually.

 The total Council Tax for Barking and Dagenham is budgeted at £80.972m a net 
increase of £3.192m after adjusting for the revised CTRS scheme that is 
undergoing consultation as per the October 2023 Report. 

 Business Rates – from 1 April 2023 a revaluation was implemented which has 
resulted in increases in valuations to which Business Rates will be calculated. 
An increase of £3.72m is assumed in the overall funding receivable from 
business rates in 2024/25 from new developments within the borough and 
through allowance for inflation. As part of the Autumn Statement For 2024/25, 
the small business multiplier in England will be frozen for a fourth consecutive 
year at 49.9p, while the standard multiplier will be uprated by September CPI to 
54.6p. The current 75% relief for eligible Retail, Hospitality and Leisure (RHL) 
properties is being extended for 2024-25.

 Local Authorities will be fully compensated for the loss of income because of 
these business rates measures and will receive new burdens funding for 
administrative and IT costs.

 Business Rates Pooling 2024/25 - The Council has agreed to participate in 
business rates pool with Thurrock and Havering and this is expected to generate 
a further £1.00m in additional funding for the Council. This arrangement will be 
reviewed annually in line with projection from Pool partners to ensure the 
Council continues to benefit from the arrangement. 

 Social Care Funding – Local Government will continue to receive Social Care 
funding in addition to the 2% Adult Social Care precept. It is expected that the 
Social Care Grant will increase in line with Inflation and the MTFS projects an 
increase to £19.71m from £16.627m in the current year.  

4.2. Various Grants – Over the past couple of years the Government has announced a 
few grants to support Local Authority Budgets and these grants (listed below) are 
expected to continue in 2024/25 and over the next 3 years of the MTFS cycle. 

 New Homes Bonus – The Council will continue to receive its share of the 
New Homes Bonus to reflect and incentivise housing growth in their areas. 
The Government has committed to maintaining the funding of the NHB.  
However no specific details have been provided to increases in future 
years and therefore the budget plan assumes a constant allocation from 
current year to 2024/25 with no increases in 2025/26 onwards.

Page 16



 Previously this grant was budgeted as part of the total return from 
investment in Be First. However, upon further review this has now been 
split into a separate line to reflect the direct award to the Council. 

 Public Health Grant – this is a ringfenced grant and, whilst we assume 
the grant will continue at current levels, there is a lack of clarity on whether 
there will be additional funding to support ongoing public health initiatives 
related to the recovery from COVID-19. 

5. Budget Changes from July 2023 and Budget Risks

5.1. The report to Cabinet in July 2023 set out the following financial forecasts over the 
medium term:

2024-25
£m

2025-26
£m

2026-27
£m

Budget Gap (incremental) 11.865 3.682 9.413

Budget Gap (cumulative) 11.865 15.547 24.960

5.2. A review of the assumptions has been undertaken and the financial forecast has 
been updated as shown in the table below. These updates are best estimates of the 
impact of the changes and are subject to change before the MTFS is presented for 
approval in February / March 2024:

2024-25
£m

2025-26
£m

2026-27
£m

Budget Gap July 2023 
(cumulative) 11.865 15.547 24.960

Legacy Budget Corrections 3.604 0 0
Net Budget Changes (Growth 
and Savings 2023)* 7.866 12.156 12.093

REVISED BUDGET GAP 23.335 27.703 37.053

*subject to consultation and approval

6. Council Reserves

6.1. Barking and Dagenham is facing considerable financial pressures and whilst the 
Council’s reserve balances have been strong over recent years, that support is now 
being diminished as those reserves have been utilised. The Council’s ability to rely 
on reserves is now largely over and structural changes will be required to ensure a 
sustainable balanced budget position. 

6.2. The Council’s S151 Officer will be required to make a statement as to whether the 
reserves are adequate for the financial risks that the Council is facing in 2024/25 and 
beyond.  This is a professional judgement based on the risks identified, how likely 
they are to materialise, and the financial impact should they do so. 

Page 17



6.3. A significant piece of work has been undertaken to review the Council’s earmarked 
reserves, revisiting whether they are still required for the original purpose they were 
set aside for.  For any reserve funds that have been identified as no longer required, 
approval will be sought to move the released funds into the Budget Smoothing 
Reserve to bolster the Council’s financial sustainability as there are currently no 
provisions to replenish reserves within the Council’s base budgets. 

6.4. The Period 7 monitoring for 2023/24 includes outcomes from that work and proposals 
to move released earmarked funds to the Budget Smoothing Reserve. The table 
below sets out the projected General Fund reserve balances at 31 March 2024 in-line 
with the Period 7 request being implemented.

Table 4 – Summary of Reserves.

Opening 
Balance

Budgeted 
Drawdow
n 23-24

In Year Inter 
Reserve 
Transactions 
23-24

Planned 
Drawdowns 
23-24 (P6)

Drawdowns 
not in P6 - 
require 
approval

Transfer to 
Reserve 
(P6)

Release 
to BSR - 
require 
approval

Current 
Balance 

£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
General Reserves (17.03) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (17.03)
Budget Support Reserve (16.84) 13.51 0.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 (3.68) (6.48)
Sub total (33.87) 13.51 0.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 (3.68) (23.51)

Ring Fenced Reserves (49.30) 0.00 (0.53) 4.32 5.49 (1.64) 1.53 (40.13)

Non-ringfenced Reserves (21.18) 1.50 0.00 1.64 4.66 0.00 1.95 (11.43)

IAS Reserves & Capital Reserves (42.95) 0.00 0.00 10.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 (32.56)

Total (147.29) 15.01 0.00 16.35 10.15 (1.64) (0.20) (107.63)

6.5. If the projected overspend of £11.6m for 2023/24 continues then this will also need to 
be funded from reserves.

7. Proposed Consultation Process

7.1. As the Council is proposing new savings proposals, it is intended that consultation 
events will be undertaken as follows:

 An online budget consultation will commence on 20th December 2023, 
following publication of the draft local government finance settlement.

 Budget consultation Facebook Live with the Leader and Cllr Twomey will 
take place on 16th January 2024

7.2. Cabinet will be asked to recommend the 2024/25 budget on 19th February 2024 with 
Assembly being asked to formally approve 28th February 2023. All the responses to 
the communications and consultation paper will be collated in early January and will 
be presented to Councillors before final decisions are taken on the budget in 
February 2024.

7.3. This report commences the 2024-25 budget engagement with residents, businesses, 
the voluntary sector and other stakeholders.

Page 18



7.4. It is important that a wider audience fully understands the position the Council faces 
and so the Council Officers have been engaging with Central Government and its 
Councillors throughout the development of this Budget Strategy.

8. Capital Programme

8.1. The MTFS proposals within this report include a provision of £5m to fund a small 
corporate capital programme for operational requirements pending the outcome of 
work underway on the Council’s Capital Strategy and associated capital programme. 
The process is being co-ordinated by the Capital and Assets Board. 

9. Financial Implications

Implications completed by 

9.1. As this is a financial report by the Council’s S151 Officer, the financial implications 
are as set out in the main body of this report.

10.Legal Implications 

Implications provided by Dr Paul Feild, Principal Corporate Governance Solicitor

10.1. Local authorities are under an explicit duty to ensure that their financial management 
is adequate and effective and that they have a sound system of internal control and 
management of financial risk. This report contributes to that requirement. Specific 
legal advice may be required on the detailed implementation of any agreed savings 
options.

10.2. The strain on logistics of the Covid 19 epidemic has raised on-costs and scarcity 
particularly for products sourced overseas, the costs have not returned to pre-Covid 
levels and the War in Ukraine persists with the knock-on effect particularly impacting 
on food and energy costs. There is no reason to suppose that in 2024 the situation 
will be alleviated, indeed there will be more uncertainty with the United States 
Presidential election in Autumn 2024 as well as the General Election in the UK being 
called as early as May. As explained in the body of this report construction inflation 
and the precarious domestic and commercial property environment in terms of value 
stability presents the Council with the prospect of the need to purchase additional 
supplies and services with heavy competition for scarce resources. Furthermore, 
there are additional regulatory pressures on property development raising costs. 
Value for money and the Local Government Act 1999 best value duties still apply. 
There is also the issue of the Councils existing suppliers and service providers also 
facing issues of pressure on supply chains and staffing matters of availability. As a 
result, these pressures will inevitably create extra costs which will have to be paid to 
ensure statutory services and care standards for the vulnerable are maintained.

10.3. Where budgetary balancing requirements proposals identify the need for the 
reduction of, or closure or discontinuance of a service or services, appropriate 
consultation will need to be carried out. So savings proposals that affect staff will 
require consultation with Unions and employees. In addition to that Members will 
need to be satisfied that Equality Impact Assessments have been carried out before 
the proposals are decided by Cabinet because the Public Sector Equalities Duty 

Page 19



(‘PSED”’ set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 obliges the Council in 
performing its functions “to have due regard to” the need to:

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this [Equality] Act;

 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it”.

This means an assessment needs to be carried out of the impact of financial 
strategy measures and a decision taken in the light of such information within the 
PSED context.

10.4. Further clarification has been given by the Supreme Court as to the following as 
general principles of consultation being:

 That consultation must be at a time when proposals are still at a formative 
stage;

 That the proposer must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit 
intelligent consideration and response;

 That adequate time must be given for consideration and response; and
 That the product of consultation must be conscientiously taken into account 

in finalising any statutory proposals.

10.5. If at any point a resort to constricting expenditure is required, it is essential that due 
regard is given to statutory duties and responsibilities. In particular the Council must 
have regard to:

 any existing contractual obligations covering current service provision. Such 
contractual obligations where they exist must either be fulfilled or varied with 
agreement of current providers;

 any legitimate expectations that persons already receiving a service (that is 
earmarked for reduction) may have to either continue to receive the service 
or to be consulted directly before the service is withdrawn;

 any rights which statute may have conferred on individuals that as a result of 
which the council may be bound to continue its provision. This could be 
where an assessment has been carried out for example for special 
educational needs following a statement of special educational needs;

 the impact on different groups affected by any changes to service provision 
as informed by relevant equality impact assessments;

 the response to any consultation undertaken.

11.Risk Management

11.1. In each of the areas set out in this report, the significant risks have been identified 
with some of the impacts from those risks highlighted for consideration. Mitigation for 
those risks is alluded to within this report and have been integrated into the 
implementation plan to deliver the Budget Strategy.

Page 20



12.Equality Impact Assessments

12.1. Full Equality Impact Assessments will be carried out on all applicable proposed 
savings at early stages of the planning process and be an essential part of the 
decision-making process, to ensure that the Council continues to fulfil its Public 
Sector Equality Duty. 

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report:

 Budget Framework 2023/24 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 to 
2026/27 – February 2023 Cabinet

 Medium Term Financial Strategy and Reserves Policy 2023/24 to 2027/28 – July 
2023 Cabinet

List of appendices:
Appendix A –2024/25 to 2026/27 Savings Proposals
Appendix B – Projected 2024/25 Budgets

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Savings and Growth Proposals for 2024/25

Savings/
Growth

Ref Directorate Proposal
Feb-23 
savings

Star Chamber 
Savings

Oct-23 
savings

Total

Savings 23 2 25 COMSOL S01 Community Solutions Everyone Everyday Contribution (150,000) (50,000) (200,000)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S03 Community Solutions
Review capacity in smaller and under-
utilised Community Hub locations

(350,000) (350,000)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S04 Community Solutions
Review Participation and Engagement 
Function

(159,960) (159,960)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S07 Community Solutions
Review Mental Health and Vocational 
Support Service

(181,311) (181,311)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S01 Community Solutions Consultancy budget (100,000) (100,000)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S02 Community Solutions Review Homes and Money Hub Service (84,000) (84,000)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S05 Community Solutions Review Business Rates collection Service (59,712) (59,712)

Savings 24 2 25COMSOL S06 Community Solutions Review of Service and staff resources (303,583) (303,583)

Savings 24 2 25 L&G S02 Law & Governance
Review and merge Community Safety and 
CCTV & Security

(90,000) (90,000)

Savings 24 2 25 L&G S04 Law & Governance Member Development Budget (15,000) (15,000)

Savings 24 2 25 L&G S03 Law & Governance Delete vacant Deputy Head of Legal (118,000) (118,000)

Savings 24 2 25 L&G S01 Law & Governance Enforcement Support Review (218,954) (218,954)

Savings 23 2 25 MY PLACE S02 My Place Property Management & Capital Delivery (65,000) (65,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S04 My Place
Option to lease an unused section of BTH 
commercially to Care City

(15,000) (15,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S06 My Place
Barking Town Hall - Energy related 
income Broadway Theatre (Barking 
College)  

(60,000) (60,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S10 My Place
Town Hall Franking Machine - contract 
savings 

(6,500) (6,500)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S11 My Place Review Town Hall facilities management (70,589) (70,589)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S12 My Place
Review Depot Facilities Management 
Team 

(29,032) (29,032)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S13 My Place
Transfer of facilites help desk cost to 
BDTP contract from 2023.24 

(120,000) (120,000)

Savings 23 2 25 MY PLACE S01 My Place Parking Services Income (150,000) (150,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S01 My Place Street PCN income (892,485) (892,485)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S02 My Place CCTV PCNs (525,000) (525,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S05 My Place My Place review (205,000) (205,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S07 My Place
Change of Mowing regimes in parks to 
support biodiversity 

(64,586) (64,586)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S08 My Place
Cemetery Fees and Charges 10% 
Increase (above CPI of 6.7%)

(60,000) (60,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S09 My Place
Passenger Transport (PTS) deletion of 
1.73 FTE vacancies  

(63,000) (63,000)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S14 My Place Review Pest Control Service (45,379) (45,379)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S15 My Place Street Cleansing Post Reduction (47,820) (47,820)

Savings 24 2 25 MY PLACE S16 My Place
Waste pre-agreed budget growth 
amendment

(726,000) (726,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S02 People and Resilience ASC Double Handed Care Review (1,018,000) (1,018,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S04 People and Resilience Enhance Reablement offer (283,000) (283,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S05 People and Resilience
Increase Continuning Health Care 
contributions 

(44,500) (44,500)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S06 People and Resilience
Review of adults social care in house 
provision 

(448,000) (448,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S07 People and Resilience 2023-24 Direct payment returns (500,000) (500,000)
Savings 24 2 25 P&R S08 People and Resilience 2023-24 Reduce SW agency spend (300,000) (300,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S09 People and Resilience
ASC Safeguarding Q & A & 
Implementation Team - delay recruitment

(100,000) (100,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S10 People and Resilience
Service Manager review - delay 
recruitment

(93,361) (93,361)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S11 People and Resilience
ASC Head of Adults Disabilities - delay 
recruitment

(81,686) (81,686)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S12 People and Resilience CSC Care Leaver Housing (5,000) (5,000)
Savings 24 2 25 P&R S13 People and Resilience CSC in house Expert Assessment Centre (203,970) (203,970)
Savings 24 2 25 P&R S14 People and Resilience CSC Adolescent Support Pathway (139,212) (139,212)
Savings 24 2 25 P&R S15 People and Resilience Rationalise Business Support - phase 1 (111,520) (111,520)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S16 People and Resilience Brokerage improvements (45,000) (45,000)

Savings 24 2 25 P&R S17 People and Resilience CSC CARES academy (75,000) (75,000)

Savings 24 2 25 HR S01 Resources
Review HR/OD Service Management 
Team 

(79,000) (79,000)

Savings 24 2 25 HR S02 Resources Review HR/OD functions (19,000) (19,000)

Savings 24 2 25 HR S03 Resources
Delete Learning Development Officer 
vacancy 

(19,000) (19,000)

Savings 23 2 25 IT S01 Resources Streamline IT Procurement (56,000) (56,000)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S01 Resources Azure CSP (28,814) (28,814)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S02 Resources Remove Eset and move to Defender (6,446) (6,446)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S03 Resources Docusign cancellation (24,095) (24,095)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S04 Resources Reduction of MFD printer leases (11,904) (11,904)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S05 Resources Cancel SOCITM subscription (1,995) (1,995)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S06 Resources Duplicate Growth Bid for Security (105,000) (105,000)
Savings 24 2 25 IT S07 Resources IT Service Restructure and review (443,182) (443,182)

Page 23



Savings/
Growth

Ref Directorate Proposal
Feb-23 
savings

Star Chamber 
Savings

Oct-23 
savings

Total

Savings 24 2 25 IT S08 Resources
Reduce Print and Post costs - channel 
shift to more email use

(100,000) (100,000)

Savings 24 2 25 IT S09 Resources
Reduction in Daisy licences for mobile 
SIMS

(24,000) (24,000)

Savings 24 2 25 IT S10 Resources
Reduction in number of Microsoft E3 
licences

(70,000) (70,000)

Savings 24 2 25 IT S11 Resources Reduction in low usage 8*8 licences (51,000) (51,000)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S01 Strategy Scale back community events (150,000) (150,000)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S02 Strategy Income from commercial events (200,000) (200,000)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S03 Strategy Review Events Service Team (69,200) (69,200)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S05 Strategy Review Communications Service (13,400) (13,400)

Savings 23 2 25 STR S01 Strategy Single customer access function (150,000) (150,000)
Savings 24 2 25 STR S08 Strategy Return of Digitised growth funding (306,000) (306,000)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S04 Strategy
Merge core data and change teams into a 
single function

(200,000) (200,000)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S06 Strategy
Subscription: New Local Government 
Network

(13,321) (13,321)

Savings 24 2 25 STR S07 Strategy
Subscription review (further consultation 
required)

(2,500) (2,500)

Total Savings (571,000) (4,230,413) (5,816,604) (10,618,017)

Page 24



Appendix B - 2024/25 Budget Allocations

Budget Budget 
Net 

Movement

2023/24
'000

2024/25
'000 '000

PEOPLE & RESILIENCE £116,940 £128,395 £11,455
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT £15,557 £14,555 -£1,002
LAW AND GOVERNANCE -£4,082 -£4,371 -£289
STRATEGY £3,304 £2,282 -£1,022
INCLUSIVE GROWTH £1,716 £2,920 £1,203
COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS £22,882 £24,653 £1,771
MY PLACE £15,375 £15,922 £547

SERVICE DIRECTORATES £171,693 £184,355 £12,662

Central Items
Central Pay £8,285 £8,926 £641
Contract Inflation £822 £8,766 £7,943
Central BDP £2,041 £2,041 £0
Central Expenses £2,998 £2,000 -£998
HB/LEVIES £15,588 £16,388 £800
MRP £10,935 £11,535 £600
Interest Payable £14,043 £14,043 £0

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE £226,404 £248,054 £21,649
HRA CDC -£641 -£641 £0
Interest Receivable -£6,503 -£6,503 £0
IAS -Commercial Rents &  Reside Int -£5,443 -£5,443 £0
Reserves -£14,815 -£1,304 £13,511

TOTAL NET BUDGET REQUIREMENT £199,002 £234,162 £35,160
Revenue Support Grant -£20,563 -£22,274 -£1,712
Retained business rates -£21,334 -£25,062 -£3,728
Top-Up Grant -£38,837 -£38,601 £236
Collection fund deficit/(surplus) £4,567 £2,821 -£1,746
BRR Pooling - Havering & Thurrock £0 -£1,000 -£1,000
Council tax -£77,780 -£80,973 -£3,192
S31 Grants and Other Admin Grants -£10,196 -£5,104 £5,092
Market sustainability Grant -£2,138 -£3,215 -£1,077
Services Grant -£2,241 -£2,333 -£92
Social Care Support Grant -£16,627 -£19,716 -£3,089
New Homes Bonus £1,938 -£1,938 -£3,876
Dividends - BeFirst -£10,390 -£10,390 £0
Other Investment Income - Interest Capitalisation -£4,542 -£3,042 £1,500

TOTAL CORPORATE FUNDING -£199,002 -£210,828 -£11,825

Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit -£0 £23,335 £23,335

Budget Lines

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



This is a live document which is subject to late changes.  Appendix 1

Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Work Programme 2023/24

Officers must ensure reports are cleared by the relevant internal board and include legal and financial implications at least

Meeting Agenda Items Officer(s) Cabinet 
Member/ 
Presenter

Executive 
Board 

Deadline

Governance 
Service’s Final

Deadline

14 February 
2024

Compliance Update Report: 2 
years on (from self-referral to the 
Regulator of Social Housing)

BDTP and BDMS Update Report

Leona Menville

Leona Menville

Councillor 
Ashraf

Councillor 
Ashraf

12pm, Thursday 
18 January

12pm, Friday 2 
February

13 March 
2024

Housing Offer for Vulnerable 
People: Accessible Properties

OFSTED: Update on Improvement 
Plan

Katherine Gilcrest

April Bald/Chris Bush

Councillor 
Jones

Councillor 
Jones

12pm, Thursday 
15 February

12pm, Friday 1 
March

17 April 
2024

TBC 12pm, Thursday 
21 March

12pm, Friday 5 
April

12 June 
2024

Update: How are we incorporating 
Race & Social Justice work into 

Jane Hargreaves/Natasha 
Cock/Martin Russell/Ben 
Spinks

12pm, Thursday 
16 May

12pm, Friday 31 
May

P
age 27

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5



our schools' education 
programmes?

Update: Quality of Schools' 
Recovery Post Covid-19

Jill Baker/Jane Hargreaves

Councillor 
Kangethe

P
age 28


	Agenda
	 
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 5th December 2023
	4 Budget Strategy 2024/25 to 2026/27
	Appendix A - 24-25 Savings and Growth
	Appendix B - Draft Budgets 2024-25

	5 Work Programme

